
 

UNBC Board of Governors Public Agenda – June17, 2016 Page 1 of 2 

  
                  BOARD OF GOVERNORS - PUBLIC SESSION AGENDA 

  

 Friday, June 17, 2016     

 9:45 am – 12:00 pm 

UNBC Senate Chambers Room #1079 

 

 Chair’s Remarks 

 

1. Approval of Agenda – page 3 

 That, the Agenda for the Public Session of the June 17, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be  

 approved, as presented. 

      

2. Approval of Minutes 

 a. March 18, 2016 – page 4 

That, the Public Session Minutes of the March 18, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved, as 

presented. 

 b. May 5, 2016 – page 10 

That, the Public Session Minutes of the May 5, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved, as 

presented. 

 c. May 20, 2016 – page 12 

That, the Public Session Minutes of the May 20, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved, as 

presented. 

 d. May 26, 2016 – page 15 

That, the Public Session Minutes of the May 26, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved, as 

presented. 

 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Removal of items from Consent Agenda 

b. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

 That, the motions on the consent agenda, except for those removed for placement on the regular agenda, 

 be approved as presented. 

 

4. Business Arising  

a. Update UNBC Sexual Assault Policy – B. Daigle – page 18 

 

5. Human Resources Committee – Carolee Clyne, Chair 

 a. Currently Advertised Faculty Positions – D. Ryan – page 19 

 b. Harassment & Discrimination Report – R. Knight – page 22 

 

6. Finance and Audit Committee – Sean Simmons, Chair 

 a. Enrolment Report – D. Ryan– page 26 

 b. Capital Projects Update – R. Knight– page 31 

 c. Agreements, Scholarships, Bursaries & Awards – D. Ryan– page 32 

 d. Routine Capital Year End Report – R. Knight– page 64 

 e. Northern Sport Centre Ltd. Financials – R. Knight– page 72 

 f. Endowment Investment Portfolio Update – R. Knight– page 76 

 g. Northern Sport Centre Annual Report – R. Knight– page 82 

 h. FTE Audit Report to March 31, 2016 – R. Knight– page 91 



 

UNBC Board of Governors Public Agenda – June17, 2016 Page 2 of 2 

 

7. Governance Committee – Kathy Lewis, Chair 

 a. Institutional Accountability Plan (verbal) – D. Ryan & R. Knight– page 96 

 

8. Office of Advancement and Communications – Daniel Weeks  

 a. Office of Advancement and Communications Report– page 97 
(i) Fundraising Report 

(ii) Communications with Stakeholders 
(iii) Report on Government Relations 

 
9. Office of Research – Geoff Payne 

 a. Office of Research Report – G. Payne– page 99 

 

10. President’s Report 

 a. Report on President’s Activities (verbal) – D. Weeks – page 102 

 

11. Chancellor’s Report (verbal) – page 103 

 

12. Other Business 

     

BOARD OF GOVERNORS – PUBLIC SESSION 

Approved for Submission:  

           

__________________________ 

Heather Sanford 

University Secretary 
 

 

Members (voting): 

Hon. James Moore (Chancellor), Daniel Weeks (President and Vice-Chancellor), Karin Beeler (Faculty Member -

CASHS), Kathy Lewis (Faculty Member – CSAM) Katherine LaForge (Order in Council), Ryan Matheson 

(Order in Council – Alumni - CHAIR), Harry Nyce, Sr. (Order in Council), Sean Simmons (Order in Council), 

Simon Yu (Order in Council), Tracey Wolsey (Order in Council - Alumni), Julie Ziebart (Order in Council – 

VICE-CHAIR), Wendel Schwab (Undergraduate Student), Mamie Ifem (Graduate Student), Carolee Clyne 

(Employee) 

 

UNBC Representatives (Non-Voting): 

Dan Ryan (Interim Vice-President Academic and Provost), Robert Knight (Vice-President of Finance and 

Business Operations), Geoff Payne (Interim Vice-President Research), Barb Daigle (Director of Human 

Resources), Heather Sanford (University Secretary) Katherine Scouten (Development Manager), Colleen Smith 

(Director of Finance & Budgets) 

 

Shari Hoff – Governance Officer and Recording Secretary 

Denise Nagy – Executive Assistant (Support) 

 

 



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  2. Approval of Agenda 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:       Information       Discussion        Seeking Direction  X   Approval 

Prepared By: Shari Hoff, Governance Officer, UNBC Board of Governors  

Reviewed By: Heather Sanford, University Secretary and the President’s Executive Council 

 

 

Material:  Agenda for the Board Public Session of June 17, 2016 attached. 

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background: 

 

 

 

Motion:   
 
That, the Agenda for the Public Session of the June 17, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved as 

presented. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

3



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  3.a. Approval of Minutes – Public Session March 18, 2016 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:       Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction  X   Approval 

Prepared By: Shari Hoff, Governance Officer, UNBC Board of Governors 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Public Session Minutes of the March 18, 2016 meeting attached. 

 

 

 

Issue:               

               

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

Motion:    

 
That, the Public Session Minutes of the March 18, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved as presented. 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

4













UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  3.b. Approval of Minutes – Public Session May 5, 2016 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:       Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction  X   Approval 

Prepared By: Shari Hoff, Governance Officer, UNBC Board of Governors 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Public Session Minutes of the May 5, 2016 meeting attached. 

 

 

 

Issue:               

               

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

Motion:    

 
That, the Public Session Minutes of the May 5, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved as presented. 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

10





UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  3.c. Approval of Minutes – Public Session May 20, 2016 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:       Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction  X   Approval 

Prepared By: Shari Hoff, Governance Officer, UNBC Board of Governors 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Public Session Minutes of the May 20, 2016 meeting attached. 

 

 

 

Issue:               

               

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

Motion:    

 
That, the Public Session Minutes of the May 20, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved as presented. 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

12







UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  3.d. Approval of Minutes – Public Session May 26, 2016 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:       Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction  X   Approval 

Prepared By: Shari Hoff, Governance Officer, UNBC Board of Governors 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Public Session Minutes of the May 26, 2016 meeting attached. 

 

 

 

Issue:               

               

 

               

Background:   

 

 

 

Motion:    
 

That, the Public Session Minutes of the May 26, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved as presented. 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

15







UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 15, 2016 

Agenda Item:  4.a. Update UNBC Sexual Assault Policy 

Prepared For:        In-Camera Session     x    Public Session 

Purpose:   x    Information        Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Barb Daigle, Director of Human Resources 

Reviewed By: Barb Daigle, Director of Human Resources 

 

 

Material:  No material.   

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

 

Motion:   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

18



19



20



21



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  5.b.Harassment & Discrimination Report 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session     x   Public Session 

Purpose:   x    Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Tina Fraser, Acting Harassment and Discrimination Advisor 

Barb Daigle, Human Resources Director 

Reviewed By: Robert Knight, Vice-President Finance and Business Operations 

 

 

Material:  Attached reports 

 

 

 

Issue:  n/a 

 

 

 

Background:  n/a 

 

 

 

Motion:   

 
*All motions being submitted will be reviewed by the Board of Governors Office to ensure wording is correct.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



Page | 1 
 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  6.b.Capital Project Update 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session   xPublic Session 

Purpose: X  Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Shelley Rennick, Director, Facilities Management 

Reviewed By: Robert Knight, Vice-President Finance and Business Operations 

 

Update: 

 

 There are no substantial changes to the last report provided. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  6.d. Routine Capital Year End Report 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X    Public Session 

Purpose:  X    Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Shelley Rennick, Director Facilities Management 

Reviewed By: Robert Knight, Vice-President  Finance & Business Operations 

 

 

Material:  Please see the attached report 

 

 

 

Issue:  n/a 

 

 

 

Background:  See attached report 

 

 

 

Motion:  n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

64



UNIVERSITY OF NORTHERN BRITISH COLUMBIA  
Office of the Director, Facilities Management 

Telephone:  (250) 960-6413 

Fax: (250) 960-5552 

Email:  rennick@unbc.ca 

 

 

 
 

To:   Board of Governors 

 

From: Shelley Rennick 

 

Date: June 3, 2016 

 

RE:   Routine Capital Year End Report 

 

 

Background: 

 

Routine Capital funding has been changing these past few years both with respect to 

dollar amounts as well as rules and reporting requirements.  Unfortunately this has not 

been a smooth transition due to the timing of the funding notification during the year and 

the different pots of money available, some of which have to be separately applied for 

and some delivered to us in a lump sum.  This makes planning extremely difficult, 

particularly as the Universities are not allowed to carry forward any unexpended funds 

from year to year.   

 

The other major change in the last few years is the focus on the building FCI (Facility 

Condition Index) and the Ministry’s desire to support projects that reduce the FCI.  The 

FCI is calculated by dividing the maintenance requirements by the current replacement 

value (CRV) of the building.   

 

Major building components are known to reach the end of their useful life after 25 years.  

Eleven of our 20 buildings will reach that age in the next 2 – 3 years or have already 

surpassed that age. 

 

Funding: 

 

Routine Capital funding is now broken down into 4 categories, Major (> $250k), Minor 

(< $250k), Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP – based on Carbon Offsets), and 

Emergent funds.  The Minor Capital funding is distributed in a lump sum in June of each 

year based on a Ministry funding formula, the remainder must be separately applied for. 

 

Various sources suggest as a rule of thumb that expenditures on deferred maintenance 

should be about 1.5% of the CRV.  Our current CRV is $387,149,609 for the buildings 

alone.  This does not take into consideration all the utility infrastructure, roads, etc.  

 

65



2015/16 Routine Capital Year End Report 
 

 Page 2 of 3 
 

To meet the upcoming DM needs, annual funding should be in the neighborhood of 

$5,807,244. 

 

2015/16 Report: 

 

The detailed project costs are attached for your information.  In summary, UNBC 

received a total of $885,556 broken down as follows: 

 

 

UNBC Routine Capital Funding         
2015/16 Year 

    
  

  
     

  
  

  
Province UNBC * Project Total   

  Major 
 

 $ 589,303   $ 91,364   $680,667    
  Minor 

 
 $ 241,653   $   6,837   $248,490    

  CNCP 
 

 $   54,600   $ 23,163   $  77,763    

  
  

 $885,556   $121,364   $1,006,920    
  

     
  

*  UNBC funding came from a combination of BCHydro rebates, the Revolving Loan, 
centrally managed funds and department labour transfers. 

 
  

  
     

  
Funding was received very sporadically and unexpectedly this year.   
  

     
  

  May 11/15 
 

 $241,653  
  

  
  May 11/15 

 
 $ 54,600  

  
  

  Aug. 26/15 
 

 $144,000  
  

  
  Oct. 30/15 

 
 $119,000  

  
  

  Jan. 28/16 
 

 $111,303  
  

  
  Mar. 1/16 

 
 $215,000  

  
  

  
  

 $885,556  
  

  
     

  
  

   
 

 
  

  
            

        

Future Outlook: 

 

It remains to be seen whether the Ministry will continue to require the institutions 

contribute a percentage of the total project cost (part way through the year we were told 

we needed to contribute 5%) toward the projects.  Initial indications are that that won’t be 

required of UNBC in 2016/17 but we have not received the funding letter as yet. 

 

The Universities have been working very hard with the Ministry to try to streamline all 

these processes, stabilize the funding, and minimize reporting requirements.  One of the 

topics we have discussed is the need to plan these major maintenance projects in advance 

as the buildings age.  We have been somewhat successful in this regard in that we are 

66



2015/16 Routine Capital Year End Report 
 

 Page 3 of 3 
 

hoping to receive notification in the coming days regarding the funding envelopes for the 

next 3 years.  

 

Initial indications are that UNBC will receive funding as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If these are indeed the funding envelopes we receive planning and staffing will be much 

easier going forward. 

 

 

 

Regards, 

 

 
Shelley Rennick 

 

UNBC 3 year Routine Capital funding projections.   

  
   

  

  
 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

  Minor  $  128,000   $ 103,000   $    103,000  

  Major  $  803,000   $ 920,000   $ 1,047,000  

  CNCP  $   65,000   $   65,000   $      65,000  

  
 

 $ 996,000   $1,088,000   $ 1,215,000  

          

67



Ministry of Advanced Education

Appendix D

Major Maintenance and Rehabilitation (M&R) Project List - 2015/16

PSI Priority 

No.
Region Institution

Campus 

Name/City

Building 

Name/ID

Building FCI 

(per VFA 

audit)

Primary Use* Project Title Project Category Project Description
Provincial 

contribution

Institution/

other 

contribution

Total project 

budget

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 15/16

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 16/17

Total Provincial 

cashflow forecast 

outgoing years

Comments

1

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George BMO 0.50 Office / Administration Boiler Replacement Boiler Upgrades Replacement of the hot water boiler used for perimeter heating. 65,378 0 65,378 65,378 0 0

2

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Power Plant 0.15 Site Infrastructure

District Heating 

System - Redundancy 

Isolation HVAC Upgrades

Replacement of existing triple duty discharge valves and suction 

butterfly valves on the Power Plant boiler and campus 

distribution pumps. Will permit safe isolation and redundancy 

during maintenance. 47,973 0 47,973 47,973 0 0

3

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Campus N/A Site Infrastructure

Expanded Street 

Lighting Upgrade Electrical Upgrades

Upgrade the majority of the campus street lighting to improve 
peoples safety and save on operating costs.  This project is 
estimated to save 172,000 kWh of electricity yearly.

63,811 45,160 108,971 63,811 0 0

4

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Research Lab 0.28 Research

Secondary 

Distribution Pump 

Upgrade HVAC Upgrades

Replacement of heating system secondary distribution pumps in 
follow-up to recent changes made as part of campus efficiency 
review (Continuous Optimization program).

21,410 0 21,410 21,410 0 0

5

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Campus N/A IM / IT

Fibre Optic 

Infrastructure IM/IT Infrastructure

Upgrade the fibre optic plant with single mode fibre on diverse 

physical paths to provide network redundancy and required 

backbone speeds of 10Gbps and higher 114,899 40,000 154,899 114,899 0 0

6

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Campus N/A IM / IT

Data Centre 

Infrastructure IM/IT Infrastructure

Install two additional F5 Big-IP appliances to maintain 

redundancy with a second data centre. 99,978 0 99,978 99,978 0 0

7

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Campus N/A Site Infrastructure

Additional 

Sustainable 

Communities 

Demonstration 

Linear Infrastructure

Sustainable Communities demonstration.  Expand distric heating 

system to connect Enhanced Forestry Lab to bioenergy system 68,553 0 68,553 68,553 0 0

8

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Research Lab 0.28 Research

Bio II Level Lab 

Upgrade

Health and Safety

Addresses code and safety requirements surrounding the current 

level of biological research being undertaken 21,568 6,204 27,772 21,568 0 0

9

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Agora 0.33 Classrooms Fall Mitigation Project

Health and Safety

Install handrail along perimeter of green roof to mitigate fall 

potential 60,736 0 60,736 60,736 0 0

Classrooms are primary use, also 

student services and offices

10

Northern 

/Central UNBC Terrace Terrace 0.36 Multiple Use

Exterior Lighting 

Upgrade

Electrical Upgrades

Replace exterior lighting along building perimeter to improve 

operating efficiency 7,522 0 7,522 7,522 0 0

11

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Research Lab 0.28 Classrooms Flooring Replacement

Interior 
Finshes/Wayfinding

Replace flooring in Bentley Centre presentation rooms 17,476 0 17,476 17,476 0 0

* NOTE: 589,303 91,364 680,667

In Primary Use field , when selecting Multiple or Other, please specify which programs are conducted and which one is main program in the Comments  field.

The Ministry of Advanced Education

Capital Asset Management

G:\BOG\BOARD OF GOVERNORS\2016\_Finance & Audit Committee\June 15, 2016\5.d.UNBC.final.accountability.reports Sept. 2014

68



Ministry of Advanced Education

Appendix D

Minor Maintenance and Rehabilitation (M&R) Project List - 2015/16

PSI Priority 

No.
Region Institution

Campus 

Name/City

Building 

Name/ID

Building FCI 

(per VFA 

audit)

Primary Use* Project Title Project Category Project Description
Provincial 

contribution

Institution/

other 

contribution

Total project 

budget

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 15/16

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 16/17

Total Provincial 

cashflow forecast 

outgoing years

Comments

1

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Power Plant 0.15 Utility Plant

Chiller #1 Rebuild and 

Testing for #2 HVAC Upgrades

Central plant chillers provide air conditioning to the entire Prince 

George campus.  Project involved rebuild of Chiller #1 and testing 

of Chiller #2 to ensure reliable and efficient operation. 33,692 0 33,692 33,692 0 0 COA

2

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George

Conference 

Centre 0.23 Multiple Use

Stairwell tread 

replacement

Interior 

Finshes/Wayfinding

Install continuous stair treads on main student stairwell into 
campus.  Improves safety by including contrast strip, tactile 
warning and eliminating tripping hazard.

16,784 210 16,994 16,784 0 0 COA

3

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George

Administrati

on 0.20 Office / Administration

Third floor carpet 

replacement

Interior 

Finshes/Wayfinding

Replace worn carpet in faculty and administration offices on the 

third floor of the Admin building 22,583 0 22,583 22,583 0 0 COA

4

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Research Lab 0.28 Research

Emergency Shower 

and Eyewash 

Upgrades/Repairs Health and Safety

Improved piping and flow control valving to ensure appropriate 

flow and temperature for emergency showers and eyewash 

stations 16,853 2161.62 19,015 16,853 0 0 EFT

5

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Administration 0.20 Office / Administration

Replace Admin Server 

Room UPS Batteries IM/IT Infrastructure

Uninteruptible power supply for main campus server/data centre 

required battery upgrade 59,609 0 59,609 59,609 0 0 EFT

6

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Agora 0.33 Multiple Use

Roof and Skylight 

Rehabilitation Roof Repairs

Condition assessment and pre-emptive rehabilitation of roof 

membrane, membrane beneath 'green' roof, and architectural 

skylight feature. 16,533 1935.18 18,468 16,533 0 0 EFT

7

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Various Project Management

Other (Please show in 

Comments)

Project management services for all projects funded through 

these programs 13,312 0 13,312 13,312 0 0 EFT

8

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Various Roof Leaks Roof Repairs Repairs and minor patching to various flat roofs on campus 13,672 934.73 14,607 13,672 0 0 EFT

9

Northern 

/Central UNBC Prince George Various

Flooring 

replacements

Interior 

Finshes/Wayfinding Replace worn carpet in specific areas on campus 48,616 1595.01 50,211 48,616 0 0 EFT

* NOTE: 241,653 6836.82 248,490

In Primary Use field , when selecting Multiple or Other, please specify which programs are conducted and which one is main program in the Comments  field.

The Ministry of Advanced Education

Capital Asset Management

G:\BOG\BOARD OF GOVERNORS\2016\_Finance & Audit Committee\June 15, 2016\5.d.UNBC.final.accountability.reports Sept. 2014

69



Ministry of Advanced Education

Appendix D

Uprade & Renovation (U&R) Project List -2015/16

PSI 

Priority 

No.

Region Institution
Campus 

Name/City

Building 

Name/ID

Building FCI 

(per VFA 

audit)

Primary Use* Project Title Project Description
Provincial 

contribution

Institution/

other 

contribution

Total project 

budget

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 

15/16

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 

16/17

Total 

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 

outgoing 

years

Comments

1

2

3

* NOTE:

In Primary Use field , when selecting Multiple or Other, please specify which programs are conducted and which one is main program in the Comments  field.

Capital Asset Management

The Ministry of Advanced Education

G:\BOG\BOARD OF GOVERNORS\2016\_Finance & Audit Committee\June 15, 2016\5.d.UNBC.final.accountability.reports Sept. 2014
70



Ministry of Advanced Education

Appendix D

Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP) Project List -2015/16CNCP

PSI 

Priority 

No.

Region Institution
Campus 

Name/City

Building 

Name/ID

Building FCI 

(per VFA 

audit)

Primary Use* Project Title Project Description
Provincial 

contribution

Institution/

other 

contribution

Total project 

budget

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 

15/16

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 

16/17

Total 

Provincial 

cashflow 

forecast 

outgoing 

years

Comments

1 UNBC Northern

Prince 

George

Conference 

Centre 0.23 Multiple

Conference 

Centre/NUSC Air 

Handler Hot Water 

Conversion

Conversion of direct-fired natural gas air handler to hot water 

district heating system supplied primarily by bioenergy. 9900 2689 12589 9900 0 0

The Conference Centre/NUSC contains 

offices, meeting rooms, a lecture theatre, 

a restaurant, a coffee shop, and an event 

space.

2 UNBC Northern

Prince 

George

Campus 

Exterior N/A Site Infrastructure

Street Lighting 

Retrofit

Retrofit existing street lights from High Pressure Sodium fixures 

to high efficiency LED fixtures. 44700 20474 65174 44700 0 0

3

54600 23163 77763

* NOTE:

In Primary Use field , when selecting Multiple or Other, please specify which programs are conducted and which one is main program in the Comments  field.

The Ministry of Advanced Education

Capital Asset Management

G:\BOG\BOARD OF GOVERNORS\2016\_Finance & Audit Committee\June 15, 2016\5.d.UNBC.final.accountability.reports Sept. 2014
71



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  6.e.Northern Sports Centre Ltd. Financials 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X    Public Session 

Purpose:  X    Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Colleen Smith, Director Finance & Budgets 

Reviewed By: Robert Knight, Vice-President  Finance & Business Operations 

 

 

Material:  Please see the attached report 

 

 

 

Issue:  n/a 

 

 

 

Background:  See attached report 

 

 

 

Motion:  n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

72



73



74



75



Page | 1 
 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  6.f.Endowment Investment Portfolio Update 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session   xPublic Session 

Purpose: X  Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction      Approval 

Prepared By: Colleen Smith, Director Finance and Budgets 

Reviewed By: Robert Knight, Vice-President Finance and Business Operations 

 

Material:  Please see attached report 

 

 

 

Issue:  n/a 

 

 

 

Background:  See attached report 

 

 

 

Motion:  n/a 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

76



 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
This report is to provide some background on the UNBC Endowment Investment Portfolio and 
to update the Board on the status, performance, and any changes in investment structure or 
investment policy.  The rate of return and performance results as well as fund balance and asset 
mix information is based on information to fiscal year end March 31, 2015.   The one year 
return to March 31, 2016 was -0.9% and the four year annualized return was 9.5%.  The 
endowment fund market value balance at March 31, 2016 was $70.3 million, including the 
Northern Medical Programs Trust (NMPT) of $9.2 million. 
 
 
ENDOWMENT INVESTMENT FUND 
 
The Endowment Investment Fund is a result of years of philanthropy where donors have 
provided gifts to benefit specific areas of UNBC’s activities in perpetuity.  Some of these gifts 
have been augmented by Provincial match funding.   Investment returns from the endowment 
are used to fund activities, to fund capital maintenance, and to cover management expenses.   
The endowment composition of the major areas of activity support is as follows:   
 
Endowment Composition 
Endowment - Activities Market Value % 
   @ Mar 31, 2016   
Student Awards  $                                               21,103,250  30.0% 
Library 1,961,615  2.8% 
Program support 4,004,382  5.7% 
Northern Medical Programs Trust 9,217,519 13.1% 
Research                               33,996,741  48.4% 
Total Endowments  $                                         70,283,507  100.0% 

 
Individual endowments are governed by the terms and conditions of the donor agreement.  The 
endowment fund market value at March 31, 2015 was $72,149,146.  Donations in 2015/2016 
totaled $811,259, including donations to the NMPT. 
 
 
LEGAL FRAMEWORK FOR INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT OF ENDOWMENT 
 
Under Section 57 of the University Act universities are authorized to make investments that a 
“prudent person” would make.  Investment guidelines for the University are defined in the 
Investment Policy Statement. 
 
 
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 
 
The Investment Committee is a sub-committee of the Finance and Audit Committee of the 
Board of Governors.  It is made up of four (4) internal, six (6) external, and two (2) ex-officio 
members.  Some of the functions carried out by the Committee include: 

77



 2 

 
1. Setting endowment objectives and policies 
2. Setting spending policy 
3. Determining asset allocation  
4. Selecting investment managers 
5. Identifying and examining risks 
6. Evaluating investment costs 
7. Examining roles and responsibilities  

 
 
INVESTMENT MANAGERS 
 
The Investment Committee had examined various asset classes, asset mixes, investment 
managers and styles in determining the investment portfolio.  Six investment managers are 
employed in carry out investing activities of the portfolio.  Gryphon Investment Counsel Inc.  
and Letko Brosseau & Associates Inc. manage investing in bonds, Canadian and global equities 
with offsetting investment styles (growth and value) in institutional pooled balanced funds.  
Wellington Financial, Trez Capital, and Clairvest Group, and Bentall Kennedy manage limited 
partnership (LP) investments. Trez Capital also manages an open-ended mutual fund unit trust.  
Bentall Kennedy was added to the portfolio in 2016. The composition of the portfolio is 
designed to maximize returns given a moderate level of risk.  Preservation of the capital value of 
the endowments is one of the most important investment objectives. 
 
 
At March 31, 2016, the endowment portfolio consisted of the following: 
Investment Manager % Mandate 
Gryphon Investment Counsel Inc 40.2% Fixed income, Cdn & Global Equities 
Letko Brosseau & Associates Inc 45.7% Fixed income, Cdn & Global Equities 
Wellington Financial  3.5% Fixed income – Private Debt 
Trez Capital Inc & Trez Capital LP 6.8% Fixed income - Mortgages 
Clairvest  Group 1.1% Private Equities 
Bentall Kennedy 2.7% Real Estate 
Total 100.0%   

 
Note that in April 2016, the relationship with Gryphon Investment Counsel Inc and Letko 
Brosseau & Associates Inc was terminated and the responsibility for fixed income, Canadian 
and global equities was transferred to Burgundy Asset Management Ltd. 
 
Daily investing decisions are made by investment managers but the overall asset mix will 
remain within investment policy parameters set by the University.  The table below compares 
the asset mix allocation to the target asset mix.  Transitions towards the long term policy asset 
mix will occur over a number of years as opportunities arise. The move will provide stable 
cashflow to fund spending rate and growth with lower market volatility. The investment strategy 
is designed to consider the varying needs over time with spending and liquidity requirements 
part of the overall strategy.     Endowment spending is balanced with asset growth over the long 
term and may be increased as assets increase. 
 

78



 3 

Asset Class Actual Target 
 March 31, 2016 Asset Mix Asset Mix 
Bonds 23.3% 5.0% 
Mortgages 6.8% 10.0% 
Private Debt 3.5% 25.0% 
Equities 58.6% 20.0% 
Private Equity 1.1% 7.5% 
Real Estate 2.7% 15.0% 
Infrastructure 0.0% 15.0% 
Cash 4.0% 2.5% 
Total 100.0% 100.0% 

Source:  Ellement Consulting (formerly API Asset Performance Inc.)  
 
 
 
ENDOWMENT INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE 
 
 
Annualized and annual rates of return for the Endowment Investment Portfolio are shown in 
tables below:   
 
Description 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 
Annualized Return (Mar 31) -0.9% 4.4% 9.3% 9.5% 

 
Annual Rates of Return – (Pre-fee) 
Annual Return (Mar 31) % Benchmark Median 
2016 -0.9% -0.1% -1.3% 
2015 10.0% 12.4% 11.7% 
2014 19.9% 13.8% 15.4% 
2013 10.0% 8.0% 8.5% 
2012 -2.3% 1.4% 1.0% 
2011 10.1% 10.9% 11.0% 
2010 24.3% 20.70% 21.80% 
2009 -16.7% -16.80% -15.50% 
2008 -2.3% -0.90% -1.10% 
2007 13.2% 9.70% 10.0% 
2006 15.2% 15.1% 13.9% 
2005 7.9% 7.4% 8.1% 
2004 24.3% 23.6% 23.0% 
2003 -11.6% -11.0% -9.9% 

Source:  Ellement Consulting. 2003 - 2016 
 
Annual rates of return fluctuate but annualized return is the key measure for the determination 
of sustainable spending.  
 

79



 4 

Performance measurement is provided by an independent consultant, Ellement Consulting 
(formerly API Asset Performance Inc.), as to the rates-of-returns and fund performances to their 
respective fund universes.   Investment risk is also evaluated based on risk versus return.   
 
In terms of the portfolio performance among the balanced fund universe, the fund’s one year 
return of -0.9% ranks 44th percentile (ranking 44th out of 100) and the four year annualized 
return of 9.5% ranks 26th percentile.  In 2014/15, the annual return for the portfolio ranked 78th 
percentile.  The four year moving annualized return of 9.5% outperformed the median portfolio 
performance of 8.8%.  Long term investing is the focus.    
 
 
 
ENDOWMENT SPENDING 
 
Endowment spending is a function of two (2) components: 
 
 1.  Sustainable spending 
 2.  Intergenerational equity 
 
Sustainable spending: 
 
The 2015/2016 spending rate was 3.5% of the market value of the endowment based on a 3 year 
rolling average.  Long term investment returns are estimated to be between 5% - 8% and 
inflation 1% - 3%, a spending rate of 3.5% is sustainable.  In theory, the endowment’s long term 
returns should support spending of 3.5% for awards, capitalization for inflation to preserve the 
purchasing power of the endowment (capital maintenance), and 0.5% for administration 
expenses.   Spending may encroach on capital from time to time as shown on the table below 
(see fiscal years 2003 and 2009). 
 

 

80



 5 

 
Intergenerational equity: 
 
In setting the spending rate, a management objective is to provide intergenerational equity - 
balance current spending and future spending. If the spending rate is set above the sustainable 
rate, more value is placed on spending for current needs and there is a risk that assets will not 
keep up with inflation.  If the spending rate is set below the sustainable rate, more value is 
placed on future spending and assets will grow faster.  
 
The appropriateness of the spending rate is continuously being monitored given long term 
investment return expectations.  

81



Page | 1 
 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  6.g. Northern Sports Centre Ltd. Annual Report 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session   xPublic Session 

Purpose: X  Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction      Approval 

Prepared By: Aaron LeBlanc, Director Ancillary Services 

Reviewed By: Robert Knight, Vice-President Finance and Business Operations 

 

Material:  Please see attached report 

 

 

 

Issue:  n/a 

 

 

 

Background:  See attached report 

 

 

 

Motion:  n/a 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

82



 NORTHERN	SPORT	CENTRE	LIMITED
 BOARD	OF DIRECTORS
 PRESENTATION	TO	COUNCIL	OF	THE	CITY	OF		
PRINCE GEORGE

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 1

AGENDA
1) NSCL Vision
2) NSCL	Operating Principles
3) NSCL	Board	of Directors
4) Operating Model
5) Financial Report
6) Future Actions

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 2

VISION

 A	facility	that	fills	a	gap	in	the	regional,	community,	and	the	University		
sport	and	recreation	delivery system.

 We	will	provide	a	sport	&	recreational	facility	for	the	City	of	Prince		
George	&	the	University	of	Northern	BritishColumbia.

 We	will	foster	sport	development	together	with	regional	& community		
development	&	pride	and	will	become	a	regional	sport centre.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 3

VISION








We	will	encourage	the	integration	of	education,	sport,	health,	&		
wellness	for	Northern	British	Columbia,	recognizing	athletes’	desires	to		
train	while	pursuing	their education.

We	will	enhance	&	complement	the	existing	competitive&		
recreational	sport	facilities	of	the	City	of	Prince George.

We	will	enhance	the	region’s	national	profile	&	help	draw	&	retain		
student	athletes	to	the area.
We	will	contribute	to	Tourism	in	the	community	&	region	by		
hosting	major	tournaments	& championships.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 4

83



June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 5

NSCLOPERATINGPRINCIPLES

 To	ensure	that	the	NSC	meets	the	needs	of	its	two	major		
stakeholders	we	will	strive	to	accommodate	six	specific areas:

1. Use	by	CPG	&	user	groups	affiliated	with	or	designated	by		
the CPG.

2. Use	by	UNBC	and	user	groups	affiliated	with	or	designated		
by UNBC.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 6

NSCL	OPERATINGPRINCIPLES
3. Athlete training.

4. Provide	a	mix	of	structured	&	casual	leisure opportunities.

5. Provide	opportunities	for	investment	by	the	private	sector	&		
non‐profit societies.

6. Cost	recovery	of	the NSC.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 7

BOARD	OFDIRECTORS

 Don	Bassermann– Chair

 Geoff	Payne	– Vice Chair

 Walter	Babicz– President

 Kathleen	Soltis– Secretary

 Michael McMillan

JimMartin

Robert	Knight– Vice President  Arctica	Cunningham	‐ NUGSS

 Aaron	LeBlanc– Treasurer

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 8

84



OPERATINGMODEL

Full	and	part‐time	regular staff.

Key	tenants	include	UNBC	Athletics	and	PacificSport	Northern
BC.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 9

 Timberwolves basketball
games	attract	large audiences.

 Facility	serves	a wide
demographic:	pre‐schools, 1‐12		
grades	from	various	schools,		
youth	&	adult	sports		
organizations.

 University	students,	adults &
seniors	pursuing	high		
performance	& recreational		
activities	including	track	&		
fitness areas.

OPERATINGMODEL

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 10

PROGRAMMING SERVICES
 More	than	26	hours	per	week of		
free	drop	in	classes	and		
recreation activities.

 Registered	programming:	350+		
participants	per	week	across	a		
variety	of programs.

 Childminding	services	free for		
members.

 Personal	Training services.

Mandate

 Aid	our	members	and	the		
community	in successfully		
achieving	their	goals	by		
providing	various	fitness		
and	recreational services.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 11 June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 12

85



BOOKINGSERVICES
Multi‐sport	facility	unlike	any	other	in	Prince	George with
generous	bookable	space	including	an	indoor	soccer field
and	three gymnasiums.

Mandate:
 To	promote	equitable	access	to	the	facility	that	will	assist	sustainable		
organization	growth	for	local	sport organizations.

 Increase	sporting	opportunities	for	thecommunity and		
region.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 13

KEY	USERGROUPS

 UNBC	Athletics	–varsity &
intramurals

 City	of	Prince George

 Pacific	Sport North

 British	Columbia	Indoor	Soccer		
League

 Prince	George	Youth Soccer
Association

 School	District 57

 Prince	George	Youth Volleyball
Association

 Prince	George	Minor	Basketball		
Association

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 14

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 15 June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 16

86



FACILITYRENTALRATES
AREA AVERAGE1 NORTHERN	SPORTS CENTRE

Fields		
Gyms

1Average:	Compiled	from	similar	Canadian	based facilities.
2This	is	an	average	rate	of	the	majority	of	the	NSC	user	groups.		High	Rate:		$125.87/hour		Low	Rate:	 Free
3This	is	an	average	rate	of	the	majority	of	the	NSC	user	groups.		High	Rate:		$86.12/hour			Low	Rate:	 Free

$160.32 / Hour
$  54.25 /Hour

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 17

$70.80 / Hour2

$47.94 / Hour3

 The	contribution	from	the	City	has	a	direct	result	on	Facility		
Rental	Rates	for	qualifying	sport	and	community	groups,		
and	on	PacificSport	North	High	Performance	Training		
Centre.

 The	contribution	from	UNBC	provides	usage	of	the	space for		
Athletics	and	Recreation	programs,	NSC	Programming,	as		
well	as	student	fitnessmemberships.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 18

MEMBERSERVICES

 Offering	memberships	that		
include	access	to	essential		
fitness	services:	various		
strength	training	areas, cardio		
equipment	and	fitness classes.

Mandate

 Continually	look	for		
opportunities	to	increase		
memberships	at	the NSC.

 Create	engagement		
opportunities	with	members		
and	the community.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 19 June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 20

87



TOTAL	ACTIVE	MEMBERS	(Not	including	UNBC students)

April 2013 3,390
April 2014 3,798
April 2015 4,229
April 2016 4,338

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 21

*TOTAL	DAILYVISITS

April	2009	to	March 2010 137,334
April	2010	to	March 2011 159,230
April	2011	to	March 2012 276,230
April	2012	to	March 2013 219,760
April	2014	to	March 2014 228,742
April	2014	to	March 2015 225,606
April	2015	to	March 2016 233,891

*Does	not	include	user	groups	that	access	areas	where	a	membership	is	not required.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 22

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 23

EVENT SERVICES
 Currently	focusing	resources	to	capitalize	on	event	procurementand

eventhosting.

Mandate
 To	identify	and	attract	events	which	compliments	the	NSCfacility

and	services	in	a	positive	and	beneficial	way	through	increased		
business	andrevenue.

 To	become	an	integral	part	of	the	City’s	goals	for	Sport	andEvent.

 To	develop	sustainable	partnerships	that	lend	to	the	overall	growth	of		
sport	in	the region.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 24

88



June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 25

MARKETINGSERVICES
 Continue	to	improve	internal&



external	communicationwith		
current	&	futuremembers.
Launch	of	online	memberservices,		
summer2016.

Mandate
 Develop,	implement	and	maintain	a		
strategically	focused	marketing		
strategy	that	grows	all	business	at	the		
NSC	while	ensuring	the	NSC	brand	is		
preserved.

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 26

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 27

2012
2013

2013
2014

2014
2015

2015
2016

2016
2017

Status Budget
REVENUE (000's)

City of Prince George Contribution 300 300 300 300 300

Recreation Class Fee 107 96 63 107 100
Facilities Rental 240 272 301 192 300
Memberships 955 1,102 1,099 1,290 1,250
Other 167 119 113 122 105

TOTAL REVENUES 1,768 1,888 1,877 2,011 2,055
EXPENSES (000's)

LABOUR & BENEFITS 518 617 791 852 851
Operating Expenses, Capital, and Other  
Transfers 1,304 1,532 1,354 1,346 1,302

TRANSFER – UNBC Contribution -300 -300 -300 -300 -300

TRANSFER - TO NSC RESERVE 247 39 32 114 203

TOTAL EXPENSES and TRANSFERS 1,768 1,888 1,877 2,012 2,055

BALANCE (000's) - - - - -

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 28

89



Capital Reserve Report

Preliminary opening balance, April 1,2015 1,078,266
Add (Deduct) final year endclosing 46,076
Final opening balance, April 1,2105 1,124,342

2015/16 Actual Projected

Plannedprojects $ (696,462) $ (631,000)
2015/16 contribution from NSC Operating Surlpus 168,854 173,000

596,734 666,342

2016/17
Plannedprojects $ - $ (307,000)
Projected 2015/16 contribution from NSC Operating Surlpus 202,900 202,900
Estimated opening balance, April 1, 2017 799,634 562,242

2017/18
Plannedprojects $ - $ (267,000)
Projected 2015/16 contribution from NSC Operating Surlpus 230,000 230,000

Estimated opening balance, April 1, 2018 1,029,634 525,242

2018/19
Plannedprojects $ (300,000) $ (300,000)
Projected 2015/16 contribution from NSC Operating Surlpus 230,000 230,000

Estimated opening balance, April 1, 2019 959,634 455,242

June 9, 2016 Northern Sport Centre Annual Presentation Page 29

90



Page | 1 
 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  6.h.FTE Audit Report to March 31, 2016 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session   xPublic Session 

Purpose: X  Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction      Approval 

Prepared By: Colleen Smith, Director Finance and Budgets 

Reviewed By: Robert Knight, Vice-President Finance and Business Operations 

 

Material:  Please see attached report 

 

 

 

Issue:  n/a 

 

 

 

Background:  See attached report 

 

 

 

Motion:  n/a 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

91



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Student Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Enrollment Report of 

 

UNIVERSITY OF NORTHERN  
BRITISH COLUMBIA  

 

Year ended March 31, 2016 
 

92



 
 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
 (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.  
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

 

 
 KPMG LLP Telephone  (250) 563-7151 
 400 - 177 Victoria Street Telefax   (250) 563-5693 
 Prince George BC  V2L 5R8 www.kpmg.ca 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Governors of the University of Northern British Columbia 

 

We have audited the student Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Enrollment Report of the University of 
Northern British Columbia (the “University”) for the year ended March 31, 2016, in accordance with 
the British Columbia Ministry of Advanced Education Student FTE Enrollment Reporting Manual.  
This report is the responsibility of the University's management.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on this report based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards for assurance engagements established by 
the Canadian Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants.  Those standards require that we plan 
and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the report is free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the report.  An audit also includes assessing the procedures by which the enrolment 
report was prepared and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall 
report presentation. 

In our opinion, the Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Enrollment Report presents fairly, in all material 
respects, the full-time equivalent enrollment at the University for the year ended March 31, 2016, in 
accordance with the British Columbia Ministry of Advanced Education Student FTE Enrollment 
Manual referred to above. 

 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
 
Prince George, Canada 
May 13, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93



Institutional Research enrolment audit 2015‐16_PassWorded ‐ MAVED

2015/16 Final FTE Report Ministry of Advanced Education
University of Northern British Columbia Post-Secondary Finance
Institution Contact:    Dr. Daniel Weeks, President and Vice‐Chancellor                    Phone Number:        250‐960‐5601                     Email:     daniel.weeks@unbc.ca

Ministry Code CIP Code Blueprint 
Baseline

14/15 
Skills Gap 

Plan

15/16 
Skills Gap 

Plan

Total Skills 
Gap Plan 

FTEs

Total 
Target 
Funded

Base 
Funded 
Target

Total 
Target

Blueprint 
Baseline 

Actual

Skills Gap 
Plan Actual

Base Funded 
Actual

  Total 
Actual Comments

NURS 51.3801 Bachelor of Science in Nursing 237              -             237           41             278            204.02           204.02        
NURS 51.3805 Nurse Practitioner 30                -             30             30              25.78             25.78          
NURS 51.3801 Masters in Nursing 10                -             10             10              8.22               8.22            
NURS 51.3811 Rural Nursing with Remote Certification 24                -             24             24              21.50             21.50          
HLTH 51.0000 Other Graduate Level Health Science -             -            21             21              22.56            22.56          
AVED 1414 Bachelor of Applied Science in Environmental Engineering 10              18             28              28             28              28.00             57.07            85.07          
AVED 5203 Bachelor of Commerce (Major in Accounting) 9                22             31              31             31              31.00             61.97            92.97          
AVED 5208 Bachelor of Commerce (Major in Finance) 20             20              20             20              20.00             48.40            68.40          
AVED 5202 Bachelor of Commerce (Major in General Business) 9                9                9               9                9.00               38.03            47.03          
AVED 5210 Bachelor of Commerce (Major in Human Resources) 4                4                4               4                4.00               27.93            31.93          
AVED 5214 Bachelor of Commerce (Major in Marketing) 4                4                4               4                4.00               18.90            22.90          
AVED 5122 Bachelor of Health Science 6                6                6               6                6.00               11.77            17.77          
AVED 2601 Bachelor of Health Sciences (Major in Biomedical Studies) 6                6                6               6                6.00               133.53          139.53        
AVED 2602 Bachelor of Science (Major in Biochemistry & Molecular Biology) 6                5                11              11             11              11.00             137.53          148.53        
AVED 2601 Bachelor of Science (Major in Biology) 3                3                3               3                3.00               77.57            80.57          
AVED 1107 Bachelor of Science (Major in Comp. Science) 5                5                5               5                5.00               54.77            59.77          
AVED 4201 Bachelor of Science (Major in Psychology) 7                -            7                7               7                7.00               87.17            94.17          
AVED 4407 Bachelor of Social Work 21              8                29              29             29              29.00             61.30            90.30          
AVED 0305 BSc in Natural Resources Management (Major in Forest Ecology and Mng) 10              10              10             10              10.00             29.60            39.60          
GRAD 0502 Master of Arts in First Nations Studies 5                -            5                5               5                5.00               1.00               6.00            
GRAD 1310 Master of Education (Special Education Specialization) 9                9                9               9                9.00               20.67            29.67          
GRAD 1311 Masters of Education (Counselling Specialization) 14             14              14             14              14.00             37.00            51.00          
GRAD 4407 Masters of Social Work 15             15              15             15              15.00             24.33            39.33          
AVED 0301 Bachelor of Science (Major in Environmental Science) 5                5                5               5                5.00               30.30            35.30          
GRAD 5112 PhD Health Sciences 6                -            6                6               6                6.00               16.33            22.33          
GRAD 0301 PhD Natural Resources & Environmental Studies 4                3                7                7               7                7.00               24.67            31.67          
AVED Multiple AVED Undergraduate Balance Not Targeted -             -            2,492        2,492         710.71          710.71        
GRAD Multiple AVED Graduate Balance 126              -             126           212           338            126                138.22          264.22        
AVED Multiple AVED Undesignated -             -            28             28              46.80            46.80          continuing studies for credit FTE

AVED SubTotal 427              84              150           234            661           2,794        3,455         386                234                1,918            2,538          

Supplementary FTE Information
  Health Program FTEs 

Multiple Health Programs Funded by AVED 322             all above programs with CIP code 51.xxxx

Multiple Health Programs Funded by Other Sources (please list programs)
  International FTEs
     Reported in FTE Report (Domestic Tuition)

Multiple Undergraduate 17               charged domestic tuition rates
Multiple Graduate 94               charged domestic tuition rates

     Not Reported in FTE Report (International and Full-cost Tuition)
Multiple Undergraduate 148             charged international tuition rates
Multiple Graduate

Target Actual Utilization Target Actual Utilization
NURS 342            260             75.9% Blueprint Baseline 427            386           90.3%
HLTH 21              23               107.4% Skills Gap Plan 234            234           100.0%
UNGR 2,670         1,811          67.8% Target Funded Subtotal 661            620           93.7%
GRAD 394            397             100.9% Base Funded 2,794         1,918        68.7%
Undesignated 28              47               167.1% TOTAL 3,455       2,538      73.4%
TOTAL 3,455         2,538          73.4%

Total Health             363              282 77.7%

UNGRD 2,972         1,990          67.0%
GRAD 455            501             110.1%
Undesignated 28              47               167.1%
TOTAL 3,455         2,538          73.4%

FTE Summary by Program Grouping FTE Summary

Target Funded FTEs Actual FTEs

Program Name

University of Northern British Columbia April 2013    printed: 5/12/2016 page 1 of 294



 
 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
 (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.  
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

 

 
 

 

UNIVERSITY OF NORTHERN BRITISH COLUMBIA 
Notes to the Student Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Enrollment Report 
Year ended March 31, 2016 
 

 

1. International Enrolments 

This report includes enrolments for International Students.  These enrolments, calculated 
based on course credits or class hours, are shown separately as they are not counted 
towards the target established by the Ministry. 

 

95



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 

 

Date: June 15, 2016 

Agenda Item:  7.a. Institutional Accountability Plan 

Prepared For:        In-Camera Session    X    Public Session 

Purpose:  X    Information       Discussion        Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Daniel Ryan, Interim Vice-President Academic & Provost and Robert Knight, Vice 

President Finance and Business Operation 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Verbal Report. 

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

 

Motion:   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

96



Page 1 of 2 

 

    Board of Governors 
University of Northern British Columbia 

       3333 University Way, Prince George, BC, V2N 4Z9

     

 

 

BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 1, 2016 
Agenda Item / 
Prepared For: 

8. Office of University Advancement  – Public Session 

Purpose: ____  Information __X__ Discussion 
 ____ Seeking Direction ____ Decision/Approval 
Prepared by: K Scouten/M Wood 
Reviewed by: D Weeks 

 
 

 
1. Fundraising: 

 

Distribution of 
Donations 

April 2014 – March 2015 April 2015 – March 2016 

Total Giving Donor Count  Total Giving Donor Count 

Student Awards $434,641 276 $1,017,552 430 
General $358,749 197 $119,501 182 
Athletics  $160,486 272 $167,355 248 

Northern Medical 
Program Trust $299,959 637 $212,286 501 

First Nations $21,605 7 $25,575 4 
Library $44,235 26 $98,691 24 

Green Initiatives $402,131 10 $3,105 7 
 General 

Research $85,285 9 $87,000 14 

Area of Greatest 
Need $41,956 120 $67,041 148 

Gift in Kind $83,166 61 $179,914 62 
Office of Research $28,661 1 $255,347 2 

     

Total $1,960,874 1616 $2,233,337 1622 

 
 

 

 

97



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
a. Fiscal 16 year end giving closed at $2.23m.  The totals for April 2016 ($120,315) is 

approximately the same as for April 2015 ($124,315) 
b. Fundraising initiatives of note: 2016 Class Gift met participation goal and recognized in 

Convocation speeches by both Valedictorians and President.  Athletics Golf 
Tournament raised just under last year’s total.  Chancellor’s Dinner ‘soft ask’ raised 
funds for Chancellor Iona Campagnolo Scholarship.  2016 Spring Solicitation with ask 
from Sean Simmons generating good response. 

c. Thank you to the board members that have become donors or continue their giving , at 
this time of year. 

d. Planning continues for Northern Leadership campaign 
2. Communication with Stakeholders  
a. Update for Spring 2016 delivered.   
b. Supported and participated in Prince George and regional convocations.  
c. Improvements to University website well underway, including  a move to a site featuring 

responsive design and that features greater functionality for mobile devices. New analytical 
software is also providing greater quality assurance regarding broken links, misspellings, etc. 

3. Government and Political Relations: Verbal 

 

Giving by 
Constituency 

April 2014  –  March 2015 April 2015  –  March 2016 

Total Giving 
Donor 
Count 

Total Giving Donor Count 

Association / 
Organization $98,821 45 $656,817 35 

Business / 
Corporation $1,035,494 214 $377,237 179 

Foundations $301,533 11 $536,790 14 

Government $24,114 8 $65,239 10 

Individuals (non-
UNBC) $360,586 845 $460,984 866 

UNBC Individuals $85,492 136 $,95,974 191 

Alumni $56,834 195 $40,296 198 

     

Total $1,960,874 1454 $2,233,337 1493 

     

98



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  9.a. Office of Research Report 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:  X   Information       Discussion        Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Dr. Geoff Payne, Interim Vice-President Research 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Materials provided.  

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

 

Motion:   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

99



VICE-PRESIDENT, RESEARCH BOARD REPORT – JUNE 2016 

Overview: 

Building upon my report to the Board in March 2016, I will briefly highlight some new 
areas as we continue the progress to achieve our research mission. 

Highlights: 

 A team of UNBC researchers have received $389,908 from Canada Foundation for 
Innovation’s John R. Evans Leaders Fund to study local mushrooms as a potential 
cancer and diabetes prevention or treatment. Along with project leader Dr. Chow 
Lee, the team also includes co-principal investigators Dr. Kerry Reimer, Dr. Keith 
Egger, Dr. Hugues Massicotte, and Dr. Tina Bott. 
 

 On April 18th, represenatives from Northern Health, Genome BC, First Nations 
Health Authority and the BC Cancer Agency were on hand with Shirley Bond, MLA 
for Prince George-Valemount to announce the first biobank of its kind in the 
province is coming to northern BC. Led by Dr. Nadine Caron, the Northern Biobank 
Initiative Phase 2 will improve access for B.C.’s northern population to participate 
in, and reap the benefits of clinical research. UNBC is the lead academic institution 
for the $1.25 million project. 

 On April 26th, a review committee completed the internal adjudication process for 
the CFI – Innovation Fund applications. The Office of Research received an increase 
in applications this year when compared to previous years, which is an encouraging 
sign on research engagement at UNBC.  

 To deliver on my commitment to provide opportunities for communication around 
UNBC research, I hosted a Research Town Hall on May 5th. I presented an overview 
of the Indirect Costs of Research and Overhead, which was followed by a question 
period.  It was held in Senate chambers and was attended by close to 30 people. 
 

 On May 11th, the opening of the Field Education Centre at UNBC’s Aleza Lake 
Research Forest was announced. The Aleza Field Education Centre is a 1,200 
square-foot interpretive centre of log and timber construction, designed to host field 
courses, meetings, retreats, training, and community events.   
 

 To best manage the current research support services at UNBC, and prepare for the 
increase in activity in other areas of our research mission, I have decided that the 
Office of Research needed an Assistant Director of Research. This position is to 
provide support to my office, but also provide leadership in supporting the research 
community here at UNBC. I am very pleased that Mark Barnes has been appointed to 
the role of Assistant Director of Research effective May 30th. Mark is from Prince 
George and is a two-time alumni receiving both his B.Sc. and M.Sc. from UNBC. Mark 

100



left UNBC for a short time while he undertook a number of leadership positions 
within the BC Cancer Agency prior to his return to UNBC. 

101



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  10. President’s Report  

Prepared For:        In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:  X   Information       Discussion        Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Daniel Weeks, UNBC President and Vice-Chancellor 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Verbal Report.  

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

 

Motion:   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

102



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

 

 

Date: June 17, 2016 

Agenda Item:  11. Chancellor’s Report 

Prepared For:        In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:  X   Information       Discussion        Seeking Direction        Approval 

Prepared By: Hon. James Moore, UNBC Chancellor 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Verbal Report. 

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

Motion:   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

103


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



